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Associate Commissioner

May 30, 2013
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REOUESTE‘D'ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services; Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing Services to enter into an agreement with Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc., (Vendor #174089-R001),
to provide services to homeless individuals, in an amount not to exceed $14,626 effective July 1, 2013, or date of
Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2014.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2014 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operatmg budgets with the authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further approval from Governor and

Executive Council. QJWK
100%, F

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUS]NG, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object élass Title

2014 05-95-42-423010-7927  102-500731 Qontracts for program services $14,626
EXPLANATION

Pursuant to this Agreement the vendor will be prov1d1ng services to support homeless individuals with
disabilities and their families through the US Department of Housing and Urban Development funded Supportive
Housing Program.

Through the US Department of Housing and Urban Development funded Supportive Housing program the vendor
will provide a comprehensive supportive services network to provide for the unmet housing needs of individuals
and will promote the ability of participants to live more independently. This service was subject to the US
Department of Housing and Urban Development application and award process. Funds are administered by the
Department. Funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development Supportive Housing, Permanent



*,

Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
May 30, 2013
Page 2 of 3
Housing for the Homeless program are made available via the Continuum of Care process for communities
seeking these funds.

In 1994, with input from providers throughout the country, the Department of Housing and Urban
Development developed the Continuum concept to support.communities in their efforts to address the problems
of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehenswe and strategic fashion. The Continuum serves
three main purposes:

1. A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community;
A process to engage broad-based, commun1ty-w1de involvement in addressing homelessness on a
year-round basis; and

3. An opportunity to submit an application to the Department of Housing and Urban Development for
resources targeting housing and support services for homeless individuals and families.

The Department of Housing and Urban Development scores the application and awards funding based on
their criteria. The Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services receives notification of the awards from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development several months later. Although law does not mandate the
Continuum, the process must be followed to access funding.

The vendor is one of eleven (11) New Hampshire ‘agencies receiving a competitive award for renewal
funding. This funding supports the Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. that provides a supportive housing
program for disabled individuals within its service area.

The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performance through the following:

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating to compliance with
administrative rules and contractual agreements;

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including various
demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars; and

3) All providers funded for shelter, transitional housing, or outreach services will be required to maintain
timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they
are requlred by law to use an alternate data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will
be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve these requests, shelter and homeless
prevention resources for people who are homeless may not be available in this community, and there will be an
increase in demand for services place upon the region’s local welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing project
may not be able to continue, causing six (6) individuals with disabilities and their families to become homeless.
People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking shelter in places that are not fit for people to
live in, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will increase the chances that people who
are homeless will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education
and treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agency would have to close its
doors or drastically reduce staff. ‘
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Area served:  Seacoast
Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds.
In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this

program.

Respectfully submitted,

/

Approved by: X ;
Nicholas A. Toumpa
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

i
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Permanent Housing
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
[T.l State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

105 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address

1145 Sagamore Avenue
Seacoast Mental Health Center Portsmouth, NH 03801
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

Number 05-95-42-423010-7927
(603) 431-6703 102-500731 June 30, 29?’ / $14,626.00
M >
<P g
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator (603) 271-9197
_
ontractor TuL 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

oy FenpiEToN, [FESIFEnT

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of /7, County of LoCA N K #9/7)

5/¢/ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seélj ﬂ%ﬂc):wt_]? ;MW

: - 1.13.2 Name anlfTitle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

- LORRAINE MANSFIELD, Justice of the Peace
g . My Gemmission Expires April 1, 2014

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

MM««( A W Aecoc. C(Mumml&(‘lm}\

1.16 Apprgval by the N.H. DeTﬁﬁ ent of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

& WA JuUN. 201 3
By:  Cdarnrep. pernic Ao nt, On: \3 '

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:

Page 1 of 4 ) j‘?
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED., The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the

-contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in

no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of'the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

. 6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall

not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to

* permit the State or United States access to any of the

Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
ber successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: 3(

Date: S5~ [r ] d
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report

. described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation

'or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any

interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the

“Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the

prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,

- based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be

claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per

occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: jp
Date: S-1613
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be

" construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are

for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to

‘be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and

:understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior

Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: 3‘
Date: §~16 -~ D
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Supportive Housing Program '

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Supportive Housing Program

1.

3.

Services

1.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housing Program, the Contractor shall provide a
permanent housing program that shall serve six (6) homeless individuals with disabilities.

1.2. The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to permanent
housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

1.3. To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD regulations.
The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in Public
Law 102-550, the SHP Desk Guide, and other written HUD policies and directives.

1.5. Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment goals
included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

Program Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

2.1.1. Quarterly Progress Reports: Quarterly progress reports shall include the number of
participating individuals at the end of the quarter, the number of vacancies at the end of
the quarter, the number of individuals who have left the project during the quarter, the
number of new individuals who entered the project during the quarter, the status of
Project Activities performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining Project Activities
prior to the completion Date, and the changes, if any, which need to be made in the
Project or Project Activities. Quarterly reports shall be submitted to the Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services (BHHS). Quarterly reports are due no later than thirty
(30) days after the conclusion of the quarter.

2.1.2. Annual Progress Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date, an Annual
Progress Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that summarizes the results of
the Project Activities, showing in particular how the Project Activities have been
performed. The Annual Progress Report shall be in the form required or specified by the
State.

2.1.3. Other Reports as requested by the State.

2.2. All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or
permanent programs are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this
contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is
required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH
HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through the following website: http://www.nh-
hmis.org.

2.3. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could result in
the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are
confirmed by the BHHS.

Contract Administration

3.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings requested
by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the need to attend
such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

3.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably interfere
with contractor performance.

3.3. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials 3 k
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit A

3.4. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of the
contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all
questions arising therefrom are resolved, whichever is later.

3.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial limitations
may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the BHHS.

4. Financial

4.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Supportive Housing Program agreement value speclfled in Exhibit B of this agreement from the
HUD Supportive Housing Program, for contract services.

4.1.1. Operating expenses;
4.1.1.1. Eligible operating costs include maintenance and repairs (maintenance staff,
cleaning supplies, cleaning equipment, contracted services), operations staff
(salaries of staff not delivering services), utilities/fuel, equipment, supplies,
insurance (property, car health benefits for operational staff), food for
participants, and furnishings.
4.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include mortgage payments, rent, recruitment costs, staff
training, depreciation, and costs associated with the organization as a whole
rather than the supportive housing project.
4.1.1.3. Contract funds may be used to'pay for up to seventy-five percent of the actual
operating costs.
4.1.2. Administrative costs.
Administrative costs include costs associated with the accounting for the use of contract
funds, preparing required reports, and obtaining program audits.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations and
policies.

4.2.1. Match requirements are to be cash and documented with each payment request.
4.2.2. Match requirements cannot be met through in-kind donations of goods and services.

4.3. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and allowable
costs as stated in Section 4.1. The Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to
billing for any other expenses.

4.4, The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however, the
amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24 CFR
583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Interet access, cleaning,
parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant’s option.

4.5. The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as match
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials ; E
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Supportive Housing Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — Supportive
Housing Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made available
under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.235

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Supportive Housing Program

Total Amount Supportive Housing Program;

SFY14: not to exceed $14,626

Funds allocation under this agreement for Supportive Housing Program;
Operating Expenses: $14,154.00
Administrative costs: $472.00
Total program amount:  $14,626.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Supportive Housing
Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period specified above.

2. REPORTS.
As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to submit the
following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with
the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies of the audited financial
report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall
be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in
“Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions” by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time
to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing
and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development Supportive Housing Project, Permanent Housing for the Handicapped Homeless
(Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as specified above. Reimbursement requests
for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from
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the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request
form as designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The
Contractor shall provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify
expenses.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the Quarterly Reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review the State shall disallow any items of expenses that are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such
costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor. pursuant to this agreement are subject to
recapture pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration
or reimbursement for expenditures for operations, supportive services, leasing and
administration, provided by the Contractor for the project period and operating years of the
Supportive Housing Program as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Supportive
Housing Program Regulations, published at 24:CFR Part 583.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

4.1. The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount for the
Supportive Housing Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD under the
provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

4.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases or the
creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price. Such
amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval from the State.

4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with Attachment G
of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or such equivalent system
as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made according to EXHIBIT B, Section
3.2 of this Agreement.
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Special Prdvisions

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole orin part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the rlght to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall .not be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

3. Add the foliowing to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the ‘Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (@), P.L. 98-500, Title VIil of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR
Part 107.

4. Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:

6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Appllcant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application;

6.4.2. that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

Application;

6.4.3. that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses;

6.4.4. that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed
on the National Register of: Historic Places; located in an historic district;
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immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer;

6.4.4.2. conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

6.4.4.3. conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries :Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and

6.4.4.4. be inconsistent with HUD's environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or
with the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

6.4.5. that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
available to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the
Contractor intends to use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to
reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures-that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;

6.4.6. that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and‘regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development;.

6.4.7. that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a); :

6.4.8. that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

6.4.9. that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

5. Add the foliowing to Paragraph 7.:

7.4.

7.5.

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this
Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,
consultant, officer, or elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
herself or those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for
one year thereafter.

The Contractor shall not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors
or subcontractors during any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

6. Add the following to Paragraph 8.:

8.3.

8.4.

The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant if the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the approved grant.

The State may deobligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed
acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
accordance with the development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable
time thereafter.
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8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
maoderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
homeless for a ten year period following ‘the initial occupancy with funding under this
Agreement.

For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under:this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor's written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons. In such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor’'s repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

7. Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

94

9.5.

9.6.

Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor's normal business hours, and.as often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this

Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all

persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an

affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

During the performance of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the

Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

9.5.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management,. project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.

Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year

retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or

the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the

Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller

General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The
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8.

10.

Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, ér representatives of the Comptroller General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters
covered in this Agreement.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language:

10.1. The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2. In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to pravide supportive housing for the homeless.

Add the following to Paragraph 20:
20.1. DEVELOPMENT

20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for
the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract. ,

20.2.4. In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.

3
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20.2.5.

20.26.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shall assure that. residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family's actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commltment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

20.3. SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.

The covenant running with the Iand,~requnred in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.

The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

20.4. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

20.4.1

20.4.2.

204.3.

204.4.

20.4.5.

204.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and’

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and

the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor’'s financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and
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20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall' be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.
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ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date onwhich the individual applies for services or
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement

The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor isa State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State'and Local Governments.

4. Credits

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement. “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with
funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's‘representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the uniawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
&) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 3£
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ‘ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, uniess
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, wiﬁhin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(9) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not ldentlfled here.
SehconsT 77 EATAL

o CENV 7‘% /177
it From: Z/ 03 To G/ Y

(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

e /,’0/7_4//6 v [HEF]  Bumpe of weciies

ontractor Representative)

Ay 1¢6, F9/3

(Date)
NH DHHS] Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:jp
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for:New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS :
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an iofficer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered i Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
i itle 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
n $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

oy Podloron, /éff otn7 Bod

epresenthtiveSigrature)—.. (Authdrized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Sentons7 lnTpe.  tesrrt  (Enies /1< By /6, S9/3

{(Contractor Name) 7 (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials?i_
Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying 5
January 2009 Date> ~ I — [
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER R;SPONS‘BILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractors
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to:enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into'this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 3]
Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters S" —
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

(2)

"Page 2 of 3

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligibie, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, *attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise. criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (I)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is 'unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:; :S jé
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters S—" [ go —_ \ 2>
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from patticipation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

s

Tona Londleroy, [t obnr, Lot

(Conthactor Representative Sigme) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

SonopsT Mrise et Lopiil foe  pRY /¢, P4

(Contractor Name) 7 (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:—31
Standard Exhibit F -

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters g‘,\] L __ ( 3
January 2009 L Date:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 df the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

4, Togrn Lroraloran  J#S /A7, Bod)

(B%actor Representative Sigrature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
SepcossT Ma[#e Soredtt (o Loe MAY [by 043

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 3 ‘
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing,ard submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply

ﬂ/v %ﬂ;//a/vﬂ y /éfi’ o) Bad

(Cont actor Rep?és‘e’r’xtative S\@iure) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

SerensT Mnrr torrrt (ol 1o e Ry /6,204

{Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor lnitials:&‘ ?‘0

Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke
January 2009 : Date: g - [L - ($
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STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

)

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Definitions.
“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.

“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleX1II, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Department of Health and Human Services.
Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: gg

September 2009 -
Page 1 of 6 Date:S’_Ho"( Z
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

. “Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protectéd health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
L. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 0f any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Standard Exhibit | ~ HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor [nitials: S ‘
September 2009
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e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

3 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PH] received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI/ available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | ~ HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor lnitials:s é
September 2009 - 3
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate'shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Enmtity. Covered Entity 'shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associaté to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: 8:(
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Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s:knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Standard Exhibit | —~ HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: } ‘
September 2009
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly éxecuted this Exhibit 1.

N H DHHS Serconst MenTac f'/ﬂfo}'//‘ (boToe e, fre

The State Agency Name Naj

Representative

B An v Coorer Sorng_Tendle ron

Name of Authorized Representagv’e Name of Authorized Representative
/ . p ¢
Yecoc, ate Commagi e ]Defs\éfﬂ) Ty &MD 070 De J&M
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

(%//m’/f/ 3 W i B 25

Date r Date

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initialszg §
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Dep ent of [ and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Finapcial\Accoungability and Transparency Act. ‘

Touw_Porclbron, ftcsidnr fob

i ot \
(Co&ractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Sewonsy” Nenttte fern, Cov7 @, /he Y L e
(Contractor Name) (Date)
k Contractor initials: ;Q\
Date: S— )‘O\tjx
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, ! certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: (887 T6/5 s

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

2 NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19862

NO l YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: __ Amount:
Name: Amount: ___
Name: _ Amount: __
Name: _ Amount: __
Name: Amount:

Contractor initials:
Date: S —| b«-é:
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporation without Seal)

I //ﬂfUL Sorz, , do hereby certify that:

(Name of Clerk of the Corporation; cannot be contract signatory)

1. lamadulyelected Clerk of S @097 epine Seresn Conied Hre
(Corporation Name)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation duly held on 74Y /¢ ,R20/3 . £-mA¢ JoTE

(Date)
RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Health and Human Services, , for the provision of
fomeless ppp  fooSmé services.

RESOLVED: Thatthe Bosrs /7es dent
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or.revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the /& dayof mAY 12043
(Date Contract Signed)
37)/#/ /0 ENde] o7 is the duly elected /,9/6’//% /: 5 00
(Name of Contract Signatory) * (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Corporation. /-——>
/iy /\ (S)WZJ

(Signature of Clerk of the Corporation)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of f 0CXNGE A7)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this [{ 2 day of ﬂla? 20 /3
™~

By /é(/& 570/24/'

(Name of Clerk of the Corporation) . é ~ 222 z ; z
(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

LORRAINE MANSFIELD, Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires April 1, 2014

N’HZDHHSI,“ Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management Page 1 of 1
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



State of Netw Hampshive
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that SEACOAST MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC. is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed January 21, 1963. I further certify that it is in good standing
as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by

law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 12™ day of April A.D. 2013

Zy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




N ® » DATE (MM/DDIYYYY),
« ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE cerzriz013 '

.
+—THIS CERTIFICATE 1S_ISSUED_AS_A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY 'OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND-OR ALTER-THE-COVERAGE -AFFORDED-BY..THE.POLICIES _{
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE;A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

H

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}.

PRODUCER mg\c'r Jacqueline Normandin, CIC
Fred C. Church, Inc. —PHONé EAX
41 Wellman Street ONE £, 9783227287 L PAX Noj; (978 454-1865
Lowall, MA 01851 E-MAIL . jnormandin@fredcchurch.com
(800) 225-1865 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE . NAIC #
INSURER A : Markel American Insurance Gompany 28932
INSURED INSURERB : Technology Insurance Company, Inc. 47376
Seacoast Mental Health; Seacoast Mental Health Center, inc. *
INSURERC :
1145 Sagamore Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801 INSURERD :
INSURERE :
INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24957

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THiS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR| POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
|LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (MMDDIYYYY) LmiTs
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE g 1,000,000
% DAMAGE TO RENTED 1.000,000
e COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Faoccurrence}  |[§
R ey Mo Wiy oo nin| & Ve 8 e [ it P .. o . R .
CLAIMS—M ADE - GCCUR A > B A e it e A ales ks o |SMEDEXB(Any one person), | § 10990 e
A 850255322326 32013 312014 | pERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § Toods
GEMERAL AGGREGATE ¢ 000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AgG | § 1-000.000
i
{ POLICY JPSS'T LOC $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &g"g‘gg‘:j'gg JS'NGLE Limir g 1-000.000.00
X 1 ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
A ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 100258322358 3172013 311/2014 ;
Aros e BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS Per accident}
£
UMBRELLALIAB | X | onyp EACH OGCURRENGE g S.000.00
A X | EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 460288322327 3M/2013 3/1/2014 AGGREGATE 5 5,000,000
DED | X ‘ RETENTION§ ‘00 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS" LIABILITY TORY LIMITS = 500,000
ANY PROPR!ETDRIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT § >
B | OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDEDS NIA TWC3268660 3M/2013 3/1/2014 550,000
{Mandatory in NH} E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE] § !
if yes, describe under 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
Profassional Liability Limit $1,000,000 per occurence
$3,000,000 annuat aggregate
A | Profassional Liaiility 850258322326 31/2013 3172014

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
Evidence of coverage for the followng employad non md professionals ot the named insured:

Jerrold Pollak, PHD; Susan Neal, MA LICSW; John Potter, M.Ed. ; Milton Bumett, MSW, Ed.D; Ellen
MeFarland, MS, LGMHC; John Burbank, M.ED, LCMHG; Beverly Newbary, LIGSW; Scatt Brown, M.ED,
LCMHC; Debra Springfield, MSN, LICSW; Marjorie Briand, MSW, LICSW;, Lucille Karatzas, LICSW,;
Margarst Dawson, EDD; David Ceglia, LCMHC; Richard Guars, PhD, Dennis Walker: Anita DiNitto,
LICSW; Christing Curry, LCMHC; Jodie Lubarsky, LCMHG & Dennis Walker, LICSW

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Seacoast Mental Health Center Inc.
Evidence of Coverage

1145 Sagamore Avenue
Portsmouth, NH 03801

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Cliem# 3593

ACORD 25 {2010/05)

Mst# <495/ Cert Holder & 26465

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD
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KBS

Kittell Branagan & Sargent
Certified Public Accountants

Vermont License # 167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. as of June 30, 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
supplementary information on page 8 through 11 is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audit standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

St. Albans, Vermont
August 21, 2012

154 North Main Street, St. Albans, Vermont 05478 | P 802.524.9531 | 800.499.9531 | F 802.524.9533

www.kbscpa.com



Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
_ Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts receivable (net of $485,000 allowance)
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to affiliate
Accounts payable
Deferred income
Accrued vacation
Accrued expenses

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 318,523
818,934
83,269
1,220,726
29,984

$ 1250710

$ 413,244
98,589
14,950

121,434
99,247

747,464

503,246

8 1250710
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Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Public support -

Federal $ 199,100
State of New Hampshire - BBH 42,050
Other public support 550,823
Total Public Support 791,973
Revenues -
Program service fees 8,105,319
Rental income 78,457
Interest Income : 2,077
Other revenue _ 106,948
Total Revenues 8,292,801
TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 9,084,774
EXPENSES
BBH funded program services -
Children services 2,089,457
Therapy Mentoring 630,438
Elder services 649,407
Intake services 126,434
Crisis response : 724,055
Job store ) 229,883
Portsmouth CSP Team 1,078,535
CSP-ITT 635,915
Exeter CSP Team 1,282,249
Fairweather Lodge . 637,775
Springbrook 33,507
Drug Court 111,131
Non-DMH funded program services 915,876
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,144,662

DEFICIENCY OF PUBLIC SUPPORT AND

REVENUE UNDER EXPENSES FROM OPERATIONS (59,888)
NET ASSETS, beginning 563,134
NET ASSETS, ending § 503,246

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in net assets $  (59,888)
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash
provided by operations:

Depreciation 18,332
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable - trade (68,736)
Prepaid expenses (5,233)
Restricted Cash 3,446
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities (5,062)
Deferred income (12,606)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (129,747)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (25,618)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Related party repayments, net 302,371
NET INCREASE IN CASH | 147,006
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 171,517
CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 318,523

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash Payments for Interest $ 5,818

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTE 1

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization
Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. (the Center) is a not-for-profit corporation, organized

under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and related non-
mental health programs; it is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the organization qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a
private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Income Taxes

Consideration has been given to uncertain tax positions. The federal income tax returns for the
years ended after June 30, 2009, remain open for potential examination by major tax
jurisdictions, generally for three years after they were filed.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Related Organizations

The Center leases property and equipment from Seacoast Mental Health Center Resource
Group, Inc. - a related non-profit corporation formed in 1985 for the benefit of Seacoast
Mental Health Center, Inc. Seacoast Mental Health Center Resource Group was formed to
support the operations of Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. by managing and renting
property and raising other funds on its behalf.

Depreciation
The cost of property, equipment and leasehold improvements is depreciated over the

estimated useful life of the assets using the straight line method. Assets deemed to have a
useful life greater than three years are deemed capital in nature. Estimated useful lives range
from 3 to 30 years.

State Grants
The Center receives a number of grants from and has entered into various contracts with the
State of New Hampshire related to the delivery of mental health services.

Vacation Pay and Fringe Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.




NOTE 1

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue

Revenue from federal, state and other sources is recognized in the period earned.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on amounts billed for services provided. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is the Center’s estimate of the amount of probable losses in
the existing accounts receivable based on historic trends and the composition of the accounts
receivable aging as of June 30, 2012.

Third Party Contractual Arrangements

A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-
party payors. The corporation receives reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid and Blue
Cross at defined rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is
recorded as allowances when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is
provided on outstanding patient receivables at the balance sheet date. '

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Center considers all short-term debt securities
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

NOTE 2 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost, consists of the following:

Computer equipment $ 338,694
Furniture, fixtures and equipmnet 999,071
1,337,765

Accumulated Depreciation (1,307,781)
Net Book Value $ 29,984



NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients

" Insurance companies

Medicaid receivable
Medicare receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

BDAS

CDBG Grant
Department of Justice
Employee

Exeter Hospital
Lamprey Healthcare

UNH

TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

DEFERRED INCOME

BBH

LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2012, the Center had available a line of credit with an upper limit of $500,000.
At that date, $-0- had been borrowed against the line of credit. These funds are available with
an interest rate of The Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, floating. This line of credit expires on
April 12,2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Center collected $72,000 from Seacoast Mental
Health Center Resource Group, Inc. (Resource Group) in management fees for administrative

services.

$ 365,446
259,466
441,018
213,817

1,279,747

(485,000)
794,747

3,375
1,250
14,705
912
1,642
250
2,053

24,187

5 818934

$ 14,950



NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

NOTE 9

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Center had legal costs of $18,843 with a law firm in
which a board member is a partner. '

Included in Due to Affiliate is $412,000 in principal and $1,244 in related interest owed from
a line of credit issued to the Center from Resource Group with a limit of $447,079. Interest is
charged at prime plus 1%. As of June 30, 2012 the interest rate was 4.25%. During the year
ended June 30, 2012 $6,188 was paid in interest related to this line of credit.

The Center guarantees mortgages totaling $838,478 for the Resource Group as of June 30,
2012.

Operating Leases

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Center rented properties and equipment from the
Resource Group. Total rent paid for the year for property and equipment was $320,772 and
$61,041, respectively. The Center is obligated to the Resource Group under cancelable leases
to continue to rent these facilities and equipment at an annual rate of approximately $383,840
through June 2017.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Center has the option to make contributions to a tax-sheltered annuity on behalf of its
employees. This program covers substantially all full-time employees. During the year ended
June 30, 2012, no such contributions were made.

COMMITMENTS

The Center has entered into a subscription agreement with a software vendor and is obligated
to pay $5,950 per month through May 31, 2016 in exchange for software subscription
services.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Center has evaluated subsequent
events through August 21, 2012, which is the date these basic financial statements were
available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2012, have
been incorporated into these basic financial statements herein.
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CLIENT FEES

BLUE CROSS / BLUE SHIELD

MEDICAID

MEDICARE

OTHER INSURANCE

ALLOWANCE FOR
UNCOLLECTIBLES

TOTAL

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Contractual
Accounts Allowances Accounts
Receivable and Other Receivable
Beginning Discounts Cash End
of Year Gross Fees Given Receipts of Year
$ 421,792 $§ 1,2352238 $ (933,882) $§ (357,702) § 365,446
11,536 124,124 (26,949) (87,121) 21,590
487,610 7,751,497 (1,448,843)  (6,349,246) 441,018
99,541 974,566 (509,361) (350,929) 213,817
159,05.0 1,460,344 (521,416) (860,102) 237,876
(450,000) - - - (485,000)
$ 729,529 $11,545,769 $ (3,440,451) $(8,005,100) § 794,747




¥ Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
C ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES AND RECEIVABLES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Receivable
(Deferred Receivable
Income) BBH (Deferred
From Revenues Income)
BBH Per Audited From
Beginning Financial Receipts BBH

of Year Statements for Year End of Year

CONTRACT YEAR, June 30, 2012 $ - $ 42050 $ (57,0000 $  (14,950)
Analysis of Receipts
Date of Receipt ‘

go ove __Amount
07/26/11 | $ 9,562
08/29/11 | 4,781
09/28/11 ; 4,781
10/18/11 ~. 300
10/31/11 : 4,781
11/30/11 A f 4,781
12/13/11 | 1,799
12/29/11 ’ 4,781
01/24/12 : 15,239
02/02/12 % 4,781
02/24/12 ! 4,781
03/29/12 : 4,781
05/01/12 g 4,781
06/01/12 : 22,201
06/01/12 : 4,781

Less: Federal Monies (39,911)
$__ 57,000
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Program Service Fees:
Net Client Fee
Blue Cross/Blue Shield
Medicaid
Medicare
Other Insurance

Public Support - Other:
United Way
Local/County Government
Donations/Contributions
Other Public Support
DPHS
DCYF

Federal Funding;:
Block Grants
HUD Grant
Other Federal Grants
PATH

BBH
Community Mental Health

Rental Income

Other Revenues
Interest Income

Admininstration

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT
AND REVENUES

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
For the Year Enc!cd June 30, 2012

Total : Total Therapy
Agency i Admin. Programs Children Mentoring Elder
$ 301356 $ - $ 301,356 $§ 116474 §$ 7420 § 33,493
97,176 | - 97,176 12,023 - 20,258
6,302,654 - 6,302,654 2,080,671 950,598 222,531
465,205 - 465,205 - - 103,432
938,928 - 938,928 277,499 37,807 47,686
10,150 | - 10,150 - - -
55,585 ! - 55,585 - - -
41,079 . 19,904 21,175 - - 425
380,843 - 380,843 27,051 14,759 56,270
63,000 | - 63,000 - - 63,000
166 . - 166 166 - -
5,000 - 5,000 - - -
13,817 - 13,817 - - -
152,911 - 152,911 - - 37,824
27,372 - 27,372 - - -
42,050 - 42,050 6,916 - 30,610
78,457 3,685 74,772 - - -
106,948 75,749 31,199 806 109 19,992
2,077 2,077 - - - -
9,084,774 101,415 8,983,359 2,521,606 1,010,693 635,521
- L (101,415) 101,415 28,566 11,450 7,199
$9,084,774 § - $9,084,774 $2,550,172 $1,022,143 § 642,720
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Crisis -~ Job Portsmouth . Exeter Fairweather Drug Other
Intake Response Store CSP Team CSP-ITT  CSP Team Lodge Springbrook Court Non/BBH

$ (L,115) § (6,256) $ (960) § 26,694 $ 2,494 $ 43,236 $ (3.463) $ $ 3,035 § 80,304

(79) 5,232 - 13,897 3,584 | 11,691 - . - 30,570
1,010 65796 153,336 837,591 558828 . 948380 316,157 - - 167,756
99 17,564 436 126,075 22,888 | 114,285 . - - 80,426
2,246 61,758 - 44,139 8,564 | 153,280 - - - 305,949
- - - - 10,150 - - - - -
- - - 13,413 - 8509 - .- . 33,663
- 1,000 . 1,100 - - - - - 18,650
11 156,673 4,021 3,454 1,843 4,132 973 - - 111,656
- - . 1,667 1,667 - - - - 1,666
- - - - - - - 13,817 - .
. - 19,952 . - - - - 95,135 -
- - - - 27372 - - - - -
- - - 1,611 1,004 | 1909 - - - -
; - . - - - 58,148 16,624 - -
78 94 51 276 404 232 5,339 2,900 112 806
2250 301,861 176,836 1,060,917 638,798 | 1285654 377,154 33,341 98282 831,446
25 3,420 2,003 12,120 7237 | 14,564 4,273 378 1,113 9,067

i3

$ 2275 $§ 305281 $ 178,839 §1,082,037 $ 646,035j$1,300,218 $ 381427 § 33719 § 99395 $§ 840,513

10
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Personnel Costs:
Salary and wages
Payroll Taxes
Employee benefits
Professional Fees:
Accounting/audit fees
Legal fees
Other professional fees
Staff Devel. & Training:
Joumnals & publications
Conferences & conventions
Other staff development
Occupancy costs:
Rent
Other Urtilities
Maintenance & repairs
Taxes
Consumable Supplies:
Office
Building/household
Food
Medical
Other
Depreciation
Equipment rental
Equipment maintenance
Advertising
Printing
Telephone/communications
Postage/shipping
Transportation:
Staff
Clients
Assist to Individuals:
Client services
Insurance:
Malpractice/bonding
Vehicles
Comp. Property/liability
Membership Dues
Other Expenditures
Interest Expense

Admin. Allocation

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM SERYICE EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

:l'otal

Total Therapy
Agency Admin. Programs Children Mentoring Elder Intake
$ 6327660 § 609,057 $- 5,718,603 $ 1319,i06 $ 382,383 §$§ 362,537 § 67,747
492,343 45,901 446,442 100,161 31,339 29,277 5,459
783,104 86,042 1 697,062 176,341 44,934 31,515 9,668
24,597 20,881 3,716 895 216 209 154
19,300 19,300 ‘ - - - - -
208,736 19,043 i 189,693 20,278 9,166 95,930 3,436
2,725 443 i 2,282 1,536 15 14 11
10,782 1,641 Fo9,141 1,748 99 548 -
5,474 1,656 3,818 369 2,646 115 39
320,772 28,809 [ 291,963 69,261 11,870 14,319 10,023
91,344 7,434 b 83,910 17,816 3,059 3,690 2,574
81,206 7,760 73,446 17,223 3,060 3,686 2,304
8,114 - 8,114 . - - - -
16,601 1,622 14,979 3,863 ‘ 731 781 529
16,003 1,873 14,130 2,592 459 536 372
47,149 1,931 45,218 3,126 724 983 472
13,001 120 12,881 345 80 78 60
34,046 2,143 © 31,903 6,167 1,437 1,397 1,106
18,332 1,620 | 16,712 3,839 928 893 645
40,050 . 3,148 i 36,902 8,759 2,032 1,998 1,490
1,914 23 1,891 191 240 15 11
8,568 457 8,111 1,239 298 784 210
12,286 2,082 i 10,204 3,065 519 500 368
124,820 11,993 ;112,827 24,694 4,614 5,573 3,223
15,522 1,185 14,337 3,566 795 782 620
231,789 11,627 220,162 50,549 58,436 13,056 22
10,081 - 10,081 2,556 - - -
2,022 - L2022 706 270 36 -
41,078 - 41,078 10,657 - 10,385 -
3,570 200 3,370 714 . - - -
85,824 6,554 79,270 18,100 4,380 4,225 3,105
34,577 14,910 19,667 8,469 122 342 92
5,084 750 4,334 1,735 2,288 - -
6,188 6,188 . - - - - -
9,144,662 916,393 ;8,228,269 1,879,666 567,140 584,204 113,740
- (916,393) | 916,393 209,791 63,298 65,203 12,694
$ 9,144,662 $ - é9,144,662 $ 2,089,457 $§ 630,438 § 649,407 § 126,434
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Crisis Job Portsmouth Exeter ‘ Fairweather Drug Non-

Response Store CSP Team CSP-ITT CSP Team Lodge Springbrook Court BBH
$ 518439 § 123,045 $ 675198 $ 394,623 $ 835764 :$§ 349,502 § 1,625 $ 82275 $ 606,359
39,864 9,691 51,922 31,361 64,780 | 28,126 89 6,924 47,449
26,099 23,755 106,261 55,477 121,576 . 57,710 102 1,102 42,522
185 99 541 301 455 256 - - 405
4,169 4,807 13,053 6,737 10,181 5,691 - - 16,245
13 7 37 21 31 295 - 194 108
447 1,750 - 190 - - - 3314 1,045
50 29 144 79 115 64 - - 168
14,699 11,594 35,774 18,879 29,487 ¢ 45,107 - - 30,950
3,790 2,987 9,225 4,865 7,573 ¢ 14,719 5,640 - 7,972
3,854 2,965 9,402 4,872 6,755 | 9,783 1,683 - 7,859

- - - - - - 8,114 - -
769 473 1,710 972 1,672 775 - 136 2,568
548 427 1,344 709 1,094 - 4,142 - 2 1,905
645 517 2,046 1,122 1,513 ¢ 25,714 - - 8,356
69 39 201 112 177 94 - 4,208 7,418
1,235 7.110 3,578 2,009 3,151 1,723 - 50 2,940
788 425 2,307 1,288 1,942 | 1,075 682 - 1,900
1,784 1,013 5,133 2,858 4414 ' 3,495 - - 3,926
13 7 166 21 32 ¢ 1,167 - - 28
977 491 1,287 703 909 - 349 - - 864
442 445 1,294 722 1,089 . 613 - - 1,147
21,362 4,448 14,528 7,649 9,424 5,576 - - 11,736
689 400 1,999 1,134 1,858 921 - - 1,573
5,505 8,056 14,862 26,161 34,941 4,369 - 1,667 2,538

24 - 2,586 - - 4,915 - - -

- - 552 208 - 155 - 95 -
1,016 - 2,407 2,466 5,100 - - - 9,047

- - 590 230 - 1,836 ° - - -
3,734 2,010 10,934 6,096 9,201 5,181 4,108 - 8,196
148 212 864 201 262 387 8,100 6 462

- - 301 - 10 - - - -
651,357 206,802 970,246 572,066 1,153,506 573,740 30,143 99,973 825,686
72,698 23,081 108,.289 63,849 128,743 64,035 3,364 11,158 90,190
3 724,055 $ 229883 $ 1,078,535 $ 635915 $ 1,282,249 $ 637,775 § 33507 § 111,131 § 915876
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Geraldine A. Couture

i

Professional Experience

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc., Portsméuth, NH
Executive Director, April 2002 :

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc., Portsmouth, NH

Associate Director, March 1993 - April 2002

Interim Director of Child Adolescent and Farhily Services, November 2000 —
Compliance Officer

Oversee fiscal and administrative functions of large community mental health center.
Coordinate development and monitoring of annualf budget and state contract.

Facilitate ongoing development of team model Child, Adolescent and Family Services
Department including direct supervision of management staff, regional planning and inter-
agency collaboration.

Chair: Compliance Committee.

Member: Personnel, Staff Growth and Development and Quality Improvement Committees

Strafford Guidance Center, Inc., Dover, NH

Business Manager, December 1991 - March 1993

Assistant Business Manager, January 1991 - Decemmber 1991

Accounts Receivable Manager, August 1987 - January 1991

Actively oversee daily operations of Accounts Receivable Department in a community mental
health center. ’
Participate in development and monitoring of annual budget and contract with the New
Hampshire Division of Mental Health. ‘

Rochester Site Office Manger, December 1986 - August 1987
Responsible for all daily operations of satellite office.

Administrative Assistant, June 1986 - December 1986
Provided administrative support services to the Director of the Community Support
Program.

Fradco Holdings, Inc., Greensburg, PA
President, June 1984 - April 1986
Administered all functions of company dealing in coal, timber and natural gas holdings.

Educational Experience

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Master of Health Administration, May 2001.

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Bachelor of Science, College of Life Sciences and Agriculture, Family and Consumer Studies,
May 1984



Honors and Awards

Federal Traineeship in Health Management and Policy, Academic Year 2000-2001

Membership

National Association of Reimbursement Officers, Past President



Linda S. Ever

EMPLOYMENT:

2002-Present: Associate Director, Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. 1145 Sagamore Ave,
Portsmouth, NH 03801. Responsible for fiscal and administrative functions; Oversee development of
annul budget and contract; Monitor and ensure proper financial controls are in place. Supervision of
Management Staff. Member: Personnel, Compliance, and Quality Improvement Committees.

1993-2002: Business Office Manager, Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. 1145 Sagamore Avenue,
Portsmouth, NH 03801. Responsible for all the accounting functions, non-client Accounts Receivable,
Accounts Payable, Payroll and Purchasing. Duties include supervision and annual appraisal of
accounting staff preparation and analysis of financial statements; grants management; cash
management; and coordinating the annual financial audit; prepare financial reports for various funding
sources, Write and review polices and procedures as they pertain to the business functions. Ensure
proper accounting controls are in place.

1989-1993: Promoted to Business Office Manager, Seacoast Mental Health Center Inc., 1145
Sagamore Ave., Portsmouth, NH 03801. Responsible for Accounts Payable, Payroll, Purchasing, non-
client Accounts Receivable. Assisted with preparation of financial statements, and year end audit.
Participated in the selection of new computer system, both hardware and software, and the
implementation of that system. Provided backup up for the computer department.

1986-1989: Accountant, Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. 1145 Sagamore Ave., Portsmouth, NH
03801, Responsible for processing semimonthly Payroll and Accounts payable. Prepared

daily deposits, maintained fixed assets, posted all non-client cash receipts. Streamlined the accounts
payable process. Assisted with month end close.

1985-1986: Accountant, G&M Construction Corporation. 205 Lafayette Rd., North Hampton, NH.
Responsible for processing Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, Payroll, Job Costing and
Equipment Charges. Verified accuracy of financial information.

1984-1985: Accounts Payable/Payroll Clerk, Griffin Construction Company Inc., PO Box 149
Portsmouth, NH. Responsible for verifying and processing all incoming invoices, processed weekly-
computerized payroll for 60 employees. Assisted in preparing audit work papers.

EDUCATION:

Bachelors Degree, June 1989, in Business administration. New Hampshire College, Greenleaf Ave.



Portsmouth, NH 03801.
Associate Degree, August 1983, in Accounting and Busmess Management, McIntosh College,
Cataract Ave. Dover, NH 03820.

MEMBERSHTPS:

Member Institute of Management Accountants.

. REFERENCES: Available on request
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PATRICIA A. DRISCOLL, LICSW

e

WORK HISTORY

Jun 2008
to
Present

Sep 2004
to
May 2008

Senior Ciinician
Amesbury Psychological Center, Inc
24 Morrill Place Amesbury, MA 01913

Provide outpatient mental health and substance abuse treatment to
adolescents and adults with a range gof severity of symptoms; assist the Center
Director with clinical and administrative duties.

¢ Function as the Multi-Disciplinary Treatment Team Chairperson with duties
including: development and monitoring of internal audit and quality
assurance systems; oversee all preparation for external audits; ensure
~— compliance with all regulatory requirements
Supervise other masters level clinicians
Assist the Center Director with administrative duties including facilitation
of group supervision meeting; coverage in his absence; attendance at
off-site conferences/trainings; in-house training of clinical staff; interview
and orient new clinical staff
e Function is the Chairperson of the Multi-Disciplinary Treatment Team:
developed and oversee internal Quality Assurance review process; ensure
compliance with all regulatory requirements; lead all audit preparation
activities '
¢ Take the lead in continuous quality improvement activities including
evaluating and revising clinical documents; agency policies/procedures
and leadership role in a state wide project to standardize clinical
documentation; chosen to pilot project to develop full electronic health
record

Director of Merrimack Valley Services
Bridgewell, Inc.
Lynnfield, MA

As a member of the Executive Leadership Team of a large, innovative agency
providing a variety of services to adults with mental health issues and
developmental disabilities, oversaw all operations of the services in the
Merrimack Valley. Services included residential, outpatient, day treatment,
supportive living and homeless services.

e Supervised Senior and Middle Management staff responsible to run a total
of 20 programs, employing 250 staff

e Managed an annual operating budget of $12M; negotiated contracts with
State Department of Mental Heélth and Developmental Services

e Responsible for compliance with iall internal and external regulatory
requirements; participated in qufality assurance activities

e Collaborated with State Department of Mental Health and Developmental
Services to ensure quality services/treatment for individuals



Sep 2003
to
Sep 2004

Jul 1998
to
May 2003

May 1993
to
May 1998

EDUCATION

Sep 1987
to

e, L
; : /

o Had leadership role in developing and opening new programs to meet
changing needs of mdmduals served in partnership with State agencies
and funding sources {

e Participated on several commlttees with CEO and other executive level
managers including policy review; standardization of practices;
development of agency-wide data base

Director of Quality Assurance
Bridgewell, Inc.
Lynnfield, MA

Responsible for developing and over$eeing compliance with internal and external
regulatory requirements, continuous quality assurance activities and outcomes
management systems.

e Reporting to the CEQ, worked directly with program leadership to ensure
adherence with all regulations; best practices

e Identified areas in need of |mprovement and developed quality
improvement plans

e Assisted with achieving CARF accreditation for all programs

e Reviewed, revised agency poligles and procedures

Program Director
The Home for Little Wanderers
Boston, MA

Oversaw all operations of two intense residential treatment programs, one group
home and a day school for emotionally and behaviorally challenged adolescents.

e Supervised management staff: clinical director, residential managers,
principal, psychiatrist

Managed all fiscal and program:operations

Ensured quality treatment and compliance with internal and external
policies and regulations .

Developed innovated clinical and behavioral programs for the residents
Involved in contract and budgét negotiations with state agencies
Provided some direct clinical services to high need residents
Participated in several work groups and committees at the agency level
addressing innovative treatment; community integration

e Consulted with agency management on new program development

e & & o

Supervising Clinician
Spectrum Human Services
Buffalo, New York

Provided individual, family and group therapy to children, adolescents and adults
in a busy community mental health center.

e Supervised child therapists
e Consulted with community social service agencies on at-risk youth
e Developed and ran various treatment groups

University of Buffalo School of SOCIal Work
Buffalo, New York
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4 May 1989 Master of Social Work
Sep 1983 Hobart and William Smith Colleges
to Geneva, New York 14456 :
May 1987 BA in Psychology
MEMBERSHIPS
National Association of Social Workers

REFERENCES

Will be furnished upon request.
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Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc
1145 Sagamore Ave
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Key Personnel Allocation to HUD Program-FY 2014

Total Salary
Geraldine Couture, Executive Director $136,578
Linda Every, Associate Director $ 81,541
Patty Driscoll,Adult Services Director $ 70,000

% to HUD
0
0
3%



Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc.

Board of Directors
February 21, 2013

President
John Pendleton

Vice President

Carole Bunting

Treasurer
Areasurer
Jason Coléman

Secretary
Paul Sorli

Timothy Black
Susan Craig
Timothy Graff
Kimberly I;Iyer
Lindsay Jogephs
Monica Kieser
Ed Miller
Nike Spel:tz

Robert Stomiiarosky



